
Vestavia Hills  
City Council Agenda 

April 24, 2017 
6:00 PM 

1. Call to Order  
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation –  Sam Williamson, Associate Pastor, Canterbury United Methodist Church  
4. Pledge Of Allegiance 
5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 
6. City Manager’s Report 
7. Councilors’ Reports 
8. Presentation – Child Care Resources – Joan Wright, Executive Director 
9. Financial Reports – Melvin Turner III, Finance Director 
10. Approval of Minutes –April 10, 2017 (Regular Meeting) 

Old Business  

11. Resolution Number 4942 – Annexation – 90-Day – 3308 Misty Lane; Lot 1, The Woods 
At Rocky Ridge; Will And Jill Smith, Owners   (public hearing)   

12. Ordinance Number 2706 - Annexation – Overnight – 3308 Misty Lane; Lot 1, The 
Woods At Rocky Ridge; Will And Jill Smith, Owners  (public hearing)   

13. Ordinance Number 2703 – An Ordinance Approving Conditional Use Approval For A 
Home Occupation For Property Located At 4648 Jackson Loop, Lot 1041, Heritage 
Hills, Phase III, Sector 2; Tammy Williamson, Owner.  The Property Is Currently Zoned 
Vestavia Hills PUD PR-1   (public hearing)   

14. Ordinance Number 2704 – Rezoning – 3111 And 3115 Timberlake Road; Rezone From 
Vestavia Hills R-1 (Residential District) To Vestavia Hills O-1 (Office District); Eiffel 
Partners, LLC, Owners   (public hearing)   

15. Ordinance Number 2705 – Rezoning – 3700 Cahaba Heights Road; Rezone From 
Vestavia Hills B-3 (Business District With Conditions) To Vestavia Hills R-9 (Planned 
Residential District); Black Box Management, LLC, Owners   (public hearing)   

16. Resolution Number 4943 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver An Agreement With The Regional Planning Commission Of 
Greater Birmingham For An APPLE Project To Study And Further Develop 
Improvement Plans For A Section Of Crosshaven Drive From Cahaba Heights Road To 
Overton Road  (public hearing)   



New Business  

17. Resolution Number 4938 – Alcohol License – Reconsideration – New Season LLC 
D/B/A Texas Taco Grill For The On-Premise Sale Of Restaurant Retail Liquor; Denis 
Jerome Gavlik And Larry Maddox Beasley, Jr, Executives   (Public Hearing)   

18. Resolution Number 4944 - Alcohol License – Edward Scott LLC D/B/A Snapper 
Grabbers For A 040 – Retail Beer (On- Or Off-Premises) And A 060 – Retail Table 
Wine (On- Or Off-Premises); Pamela Jo Scott And Edward Kent Scott, Executives 
(NOTE:  This Changes This Vendor From Sale Of Wine Only To Also Allow Sale Of 
Beer)  (Public Hearing)   

19. Resolution Number 4945 - Alcohol License – Jacquelins, Inc., D/B/A 3rd Annual 
Crawfish Boil Event; A 140 – Special Events Retail License For 2531 Rocky Ridge 
Road; Suite 107; Maris Esperanza Adan, Executive   (Public Hearing)   

20. Resolution Number 4946 – A Resolution Rescinding Resolution Number 3721 And 
Providing For The Annual Participation Of The City Of Vestavia Hills In The Back To 
School Sales Tax Holiday As Authorized By 40-23-210 Through 40-23-213,  Code Of 
Alabama, 1975 

21. Resolution Number 4947 – Alcohol License – Turner Food Systems LLC D/B/A Wing 
Ding 2017; 140 – Special Events Retail – Parking Lot Of City Hall, 1032 Montgomery 
Highway; Donna Leigh And Trenton Turner Jr., Executives 

22. Resolution Number 4948 – Appointing A Member To The Vestavia Hills Board Of 
Education 

New Business (Unanimous Consent Requested) 

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

23. Citizen Comments    
24. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
April 10, 2017 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

APRIL 10, 2017 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM.  
The Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the 
following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Ashley C. Curry 
      Kimberly Cook, Councilor 
      Paul Head, Councilor 
      George Pierce, Councilor 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Jason Hardin, Police Captain 
      Kevin York, Police Captain 
      Jimmy Coleman, Compliance Officer 
      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
      Marvin Green, Deputy Fire Chief 
      Terry Ray, Deputy Fire Chief 
      Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Asst. Treasurer 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
      Lori Beth Kearley, Assistant City Engineer 
 
 
 Invocation was given by Ben Acton, Southminster Presbyterian Church, followed 
by the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION  
 

• Mayor Curry announced that Councilor Weaver could not be present tonight 
because of a death in the family.  

• Mr. Pierce welcomed Chamber of Commerce members Rachel Patterson, Roger 
Steur and President of the Chamber, Karen Odle. 



City Council Minutes 
April 10, 2017 

Page 2 
 

• Mrs. Cook stated that the Council has received five applications for the Board of 
Education vacancy.  The dates/times of interviews are still in negotiations but will 
be announced soon. 

• Mrs. Cook announced that the Board of Education will have a work session on 
Wednesday, April 12, beginning at 5 PM and the Board meeting is scheduled to 
begin immediately after that meeting. She indicated that they will be discussing 
operational costs for the various options presented in the demographers report. 

• Mr. Downes announced a work session April 17 from 10 to 3 for the Council to 
interview for a potential program manager to help the City implement the 
Community Spaces Plan.  The regular work session of the Council will be at 6 
PM that night. 

 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
 The Mayor presented a proclamation for “Safe Digging Month.”  Mr. Downes 
read the proclamation and the Mayor presented it to Brian Davis, Public Services 
Director. 
 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

• Mr. Downes announced that Friday, April 14, 2017, City offices are closed in 
observance of Good Friday. 

• Mr. Downes stated that the Regional Planning Commission of Greater 
Birmingham offered the City a grant totaling $60,000, which includes a local 
match of $20,000, for the purpose of studying the improvement of Crosshaven 
Drive. He indicated acceptance of that grant is on for a first read tonight with 
public hearing at the next meeting. 

• Mr. Downes updated the council on the progress of the Community Spaces Plan.  
He stated that this will be discussed tonight in relation to the Gold’s Gym 
property and the next step will be retaining a program manager to see the City 
through the next several phases.  The Community Spaces Committee has 
appointed leaders to form subcommittees, who will be reaching out for committee 
members to encourage greater community engagement in the planning process. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

• Mrs. Cook welcomed David Powell, Board of Education, to the meeting. 
• Mrs. Cook stated that there have been concerns over through traffic and unsafe 

situations at the schools in Liberty Park during peak carpool times.  She stated 
that they have worked with various school administrators, Public Works and the 
police for re-routing of traffic.  The new routes have been implemented and 
appear to be working well.  She thanked everyone for cooperation in the 
endeavor. 



City Council Minutes 
April 10, 2017 

Page 3 
 

• Mr. Pierce stated that some sections of Sicard Hollow have been resurfaced and it 
is much better. 

• Mr. Pierce stated that he attended a new Leadership Vestavia Hills class when 
they presented their annual projects.  All of them were very impressive and he 
hopes they will continue on with these projects. 

• Mr. Pierce stated that the 6th Annual Wing Ding will be Saturday, May 20 here at 
City Hall. 

• Mr. Head welcomed Park and Recreation Board members Tommy Coggin, Anne 
Smyth, Earl Gibson and David Myers to the meeting and indicated that there will 
be a work session this Thursday beginning at 10 AM. 

• The Mayor stated that, last Saturday, the City entertained visitors from 
Kazakhstan, including two members of their Parliament. The visitors were 
sponsored by a government exchange program, called Open World, established by 
Congress in 2000 to promote an exchange of ideas between the U.S. and countries 
of the post-Soviet era. The local affiliates, called Friendship Force, contacted 
Vestavia Hills about participating.  He commended Julie Harper from Parks and 
Recreation who facilitated the program.   

• The Mayor stated that the Legislature is in session and there are several bills that 
have impact on all cities within the State.  He indicated that he has met with Jabo 
Waggoner concerning Senate Bill 316 that was just released out of committee and 
exempts small out-of-jurisdiction businesses from obtaining a license when 
delivering goods into our City.  He asked everyone to contact  legislators to urge 
them to vote against bills like this one that adversely affect the City’s revenues.  
Mr. Pierce stated that contact information for all legislators is on the City’s 
website. 

 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

The minutes of the March 13, 2017 (Work Session), March 20, 2017 (Work 
Session) and April 10, 2017 (Regular Meeting) were presented for approval: 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of March 13, 2017 

(Work Session), March 20, 2017 (Work Session) and approve them as 
presented was by Mrs. Cook and second by Mr. Pierce.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mayor Curry – yes   
        Motion carried. 
 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of March 13, 2017 

(Work Session), March 20, 2017 (Work Session) and March 27, 2017 
(Regular Meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mrs. Cook and 
second by Mr. Pierce.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – abstained  



City Council Minutes 
April 10, 2017 

Page 4 
 

   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mayor Curry – yes   
        Motion carried. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4935 
 
Resolution Number 4935 – Accepting A Sanitation Bid For The City Of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama   (public hearing) 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4935 was by Mr. Pierce and 

second was by Mrs. Cook.  
 
 Mr. Downes explained that bids were invited for a new sanitation contract to 
become effective October 1, 2017. 
 
 Mr. Davis explained that seven bids were returned, two were “no bid”.  He 
explained the results of the bids received.  He explained the City’s Action Center process 
and the discussed changes for this new contract to allow the contractor to answer the 
requests directly.  He stated that they hope services will be improved through this new 
policy.  With the new contract, the contractor will make some capital investments into 
newer boom equipment to assist in picking up debris and recyclables.  He indicated that 
after review of the bids, recommendation is to accept the bid proposal from Republic 
Services. 
 
 Gary Stigani, Republic Services, stated that they have agreed to these 
streamlining changes and upgrades and look forward to continuing to serve the City’s 
needs. 
 
 Discussion ensued regarding the condition of some of the containers, replacement 
of worn equipment, a supervisor dedicated solely to the City, terms of the contract and 
pickup limits, etc. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 Gayle England, 808 Vestavia Lake Drive, stated that garbage was her project 
years ago when she served on the City Council.  She asked if there has been any 
consideration to cutting service back to one day per week.  She also asked that there be 
more publicity to let residents know that leaf and grass debris needs to be bagged. 
 
 Mr. Davis stated that it was studied and determined not to be feasible.  He stated 
that they attempt to publicize the leaf pickup procedures as much as possible. 
 
 Barbara Powell, 2114 Hickory Ridge Circle, echoed that she believes that twice a 
week pickup is “silly.” 



City Council Minutes 
April 10, 2017 

Page 5 
 

 
 David Harwell, 1803 Catala Road, stated that when this came up for renewal, it 
was explained it is best to leave pickup to two days because you still have to pick up the 
same amount of garbage regardless of the number of days for pickup.  It would reduce 
the cost, but not enough to justify leaving off that entire day of pickup.  He added that the 
City will still have two garbage days of pickup, one recycling and some leaf and boom 
pickup.  
 
 There being no one to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mayor Curry – yes   
        Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4936 
 
Resolution Number 4936 – Authorizing A General Fund Supplemental 

Appropriation And Authorizing The City Manager To Employ A 
Communication Manager (public hearing)   

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4936 was by Mrs. Cook and 

second was by Mr. Pierce.  
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this Council had a strategic planning work session and 
noted that a higher priority was an enhanced communication plan which included hiring 
additional personnel to improve communication efforts.  A committee was formed to 
work with the city manager to look at the best way to efficiently utilize existing 
communication staff resources employed by the Library in the Forest.  Following 
extensive study, the committee recommended the hiring of a part-time person to oversee 
the communications in the Library, which will be filled by Cinnamon McCulley, 
following the Council’s approval of this Resolution.  The additional salary cost will be 
$18,000 through the remainder of this fiscal year.  A  Communications Committee made 
up of various department communications personnel, the Council, community 
representatives and the City Manager will draft a policy for the City. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked the chain of command for the new personnel.  Mr. Downes 
explained that the new employee would directly report to Mrs. Tucker, the library 
director, and to the city manager second. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 Robert DeBuys, 3467 Mossbrook Lane, asked about the status of the existing 
contract with Zeekee.  Mr. Downes explained that the City no longer has a contract with 
Zeekee. 
 



City Council Minutes 
April 10, 2017 

Page 6 
 

 There being no one to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mayor Curry – yes   
        Motion carried. 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2702 
 
Ordinance Number 2702 - An Ordinance Authorizing And Directing The 

Purchasing And Closing Of The Sale Of Real Estate   (public hearing) 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2702 was by Mr. Pierce and second 

was by Mr. Head. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained this Ordinance allows the Mayor and himself to execute 
agreements to purchase the property adjacent to City Hall by the end of May.  Financing 
terms are within the Ordinance. He presented the Community Spaces Plan and the reason 
this request is being made, how the property will be financed and how the payments on 
the property will be made for the next four years.  This will allow the City to fully 
implement the plan and, later, refinance the property should the City decide to make this 
into a Civic Center. He explained the aspects of the proposal, including plans for usage of 
the proposed facility and how it will all work together to meet future needs of the City, 
along with financing terms and how to manage the payments. 
 
 David Myers, representing the Community Spaces Committee, gave a background 
of this request, which was prompted by the recommendations from the Brailsford and 
Dunlavey Parks and Recreation study. An indoor facility with an aquatics center was 
needed in order to meet existing demands as well as basketball courts, etc.  The study 
recommended additional court spaces, so the committee explored options to maximize 
space in a proposed recreational building at Wald Park, but the committee felt additional 
space would be needed. Gold’s Gym became an option to provide this additional space, 
along with providing other community meeting space, etc., and would be a strategic 
option for the City.  He pointed out that the proposed facility provides five acres adjacent 
to the City Hall and is contiguous to City Hall, making this a logical purchase and one 
that would be ideal to meet the community needs of the future. 
 
 Brian Davis discussed the programming needs of the City and the need for space 
within the City including needs for rooms with audio-visual capacity, larger seating 
capacity, etc. 
 
 Karen Odle, President of the Chamber of Commerce, stated that their little 
conference room allows smaller businesses to have meetings, etc.  She stated that they get 
calls for meeting space, learning classes, etc. and there’s just not enough space within the 



City Council Minutes 
April 10, 2017 

Page 7 
 

City.  She pointed out that the spaces at Wald Park, including the Lodge, are located in 
areas that are congested during carpool peak times.   
 
 David Powell, Board of Education, stated that the Board does not have much 
contiguous land adjacent to their facilities to allow for expansion.  If the space adjacent to 
West were to become available, the Board would be interested in a conversation 
regarding acquisition of more property in that area.  He indicated that the school system 
is at capacity and growing. 
 
 Mrs. Cook asked what would happen if Gold’s Gym had to terminate their lease.  
Mr. Downes stated that the City reviewed Gold’s Gym corporate financials, which appear 
to be strong, and they cannot find any evidence of the corporate entity breaking a lease at 
any other facility. 
 
 Mrs. Cook asked about the poor condition of the access road that runs past CVS 
and whose responsibility it would be to fix that access. She also asked what are the 
current operational costs of the facility. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that there is a dedicated easement for the access road and that 
the property owner is responsible for the repairs. 
 
 Ms. Leavings that stated the maintenance of the easement is CVS’s responsibility. 
 
 Mr. Pierce stated that the access does need to be reviewed. 
 
 Discussion ensued that the purchase of this building might reduce the need for 
construction of more space at Wald Park.  Mr. Downes agreed. 
 
 Mrs. Cook asked about the total amount of space required by the Community 
Spaces Plan and how the two options,  (1)  purchase Gold’s Gym and build a smaller 
building at Wald Park or (2)  build a larger building at Wald Park, might meet those 
space requirmements.  Mr. Downes explained the difference in the two options. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 Ned Hunt, general manger at Gold’s Gym, Colonnade, asked about member 
services and expressed his concerns for the members at this facility.  He asked about the 
amount per month Gold’s Gym would be paying when the lease renews. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that he is under a confidentiality agreement and that Mr. Hunt 
would have to get this information from his employer, Gold’s Gym. 
 
 Blake Crowe, Southpace Properties, stated that this information would need to be 
delivered by Gold’s Gym because of their wishes not to make this public at this time.  
Mr. Downes stated that that information is private at this time because the contract is 
between two private entities. 



City Council Minutes 
April 10, 2017 

Page 8 
 

 
 David Harwell, 1803 Catala Road, stated that he joined Gold’s Gym in 2007 and 
it was built for the purpose of a gym.  He disputed Mr. Downes’ figures for the purchase 
of the property and that the property tax revenue totaled about $85,000 to the City. He 
pointed out that this property is not contiguous with the Wald Park property but separated 
by a church and an apartment property.  He pointed out that there was no estimation of 
renovations for the office space area of the building and that this is information needed 
before purchasing.   
 
 Mr. Downes explained that the renovation cost allowance by the architects is $2 
million and provided some details regarding what can be done if the space plan moves 
forward. 
 
 Mayor Curry asked who was responsible for major repairs (roof, HVAC, etc.).  
Mr. Downes stated that there are certain costs that the tenant has to pay for repairs and 
some that are the property owners. 
 
 Mrs. Cook asked, if the City determines massive costs of renovation during due 
diligence, can the City can walk away from the purchase. Mr. Downes said yes. 
 
 Mr. Pierce stated that the City is also looking at another property that is located 
adjacent to Wald Park that would allow some access between the properties.  Mr. 
Downes indicated that this contract will be forthcoming soon. 
 
 Barbara Powell, 134 Panorama Drive, stated that there are already Vestavia Hills 
residents using that facility and the City should not replicate services for citizens that are 
provided by a private business. 
 
 John Evans, Mountainview Drive, stated that he is opposed to the City purchasing 
the Gold’s Gym property because there are several hundred residents who use that gym; 
he asked the City to do a survey of the people who utilize that gym.  He stated that he 
pays essentially nothing to use that gym because he is a senior citizen.  He also added that 
it is a destination for people in other communities who shop here in the City. 
 
 Gayle England, 808 Vestavia Lake Drive, stated that she is the coordinator for the 
Senior Transportation Program and they cannot get the car in or out from the current 
civic center during carpool times.  She stated that is one program that needs to be 
relocated.  The schools are landlocked and need expansion and that should be considered.   
The purchase is a good move if space is needed at West for expansion,.  She encouraged 
a change in the Civic Center, which was constructed more than seven decades ago, and 
an update to these facilities to make them more accessible to all people. 
 
 Mr. Pierce stated that he is a long-time member of Gold’s Gym also.  He stated 
there is a perception that the city’s purchase is a reason to run Gold’s Gym off.  He 
explained the lease terms will allow them to occupy the property the next 4 years, maybe 
even the next 8.  This Community Spaces program says we need a large building and this 



City Council Minutes 
April 10, 2017 

Page 9 
 

is not needed tomorrow, but will be needed soon enough.  This is an opportunity for the 
City to buy a building to evaluate whether or not it should be needed in the future. 
 
 Barbara Powell, Panorama Drive, asked why the City’s facilities are so run down.  
Why not take this money and simply upgrade the facilities? 
 
 Lane Brown, 3145 Dolly Ridge Drive, asked about other financial means that 
might be available to the City.  Mr. Downes explained that the Council will evaluate that 
at another time. 
 
 Ms. Brown stated that buying a property without a plan to pay for it starts a bad 
precedent for financing these projects.   
 
 Deloye Burrell, 3273 Farrington Wood Drive, stated that the older facilities need 
updating. However, if the Gold’s Gym is purchased, the old facilities will still be used 
and still require updating, so why do this now? 
 
 Robert Debuys, 3467 Mossbrook Lane, stated that they are not voting on the 
Community Spaces Plan, which should be voted upon before the City takes these steps of 
purchase the adjacent property to the City Hall.  He stated that financing is a short-term 
loan before the longer-term loan is designed.  The discussion to implement and fund the 
Community Spaces program before taking piecemeal steps, with no long-term solution 
for the funding, is not a good idea. 
 
 Mrs. Cook stated she that has done a lot of research on this issue. She has studied 
the Community Spaces Plan and toured the Gold’s Gym building.  She stated that her 
first impression, after her tour, was that the building was very large. She said it is an 
attractive facility, with good location.  She stated that she is concerned about the timing 
of the proposal because the Community Spaces Plan is still very conceptual and high- 
level.  Mr. Downes stated that if the Council approves this request, an implementation 
program will be devised for the long-term financing of this property.  She stated she is 
concerned that a funding strategy has not been adopted, nor a timeline for when it should 
all occur.  That makes tonight’s decision difficult.  She stated she is concerned that this 
purchase is about 25% of the total estimated cost of the Plan and there is not an adopted 
strategy.  She is not sure of the level of need for the City when that level of study has not 
been attained.  She stated that she believes that the renovation of the Civic Center should 
take priority at this time.  She pointed out that, once this purchase is made, the decision to 
move the Civic Center has been made. 
 
 Mr. Pierce stated that several years ago, when Gold’s Gym was built, individuals 
would comment about that building making a great civic center.  Also, the schools are in 
need of property and space in order to expand.  The West School is in need of that space 
and this would help them to expand as well.  He stated that his concerns are more for the 
school system than for the location of the civic center. 
 



City Council Minutes 
April 10, 2017 

Page 10 
 

 Mayor Curry stated that this purchase does not force the City into this plan but 
opens the opportunity for one particular phase of the Plan.  If they just focus on the next 
four years, there is financing for the City and the current lease covers the cost of that 
loan.  If the City passes on this purchase and the owner leases the office space, this could 
negate the City ever being able to purchase this property. 
 
 Mr. Head stated that surveys have been conducted and the response was low but, 
by and large, in discussions with various individuals are comments that the City needs to 
pursue some changes in the Park and Recreation Department.  He stated that, if the City 
renovates the current Civic Center, it would be money wasted because the facilities are 
just too old. 
 
 There being no one to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – no   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mayor Curry – yes   
        Motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4937 
 
Resolution Number 4937 – Liquor License – Liberty Park LLC D/B/A YP Your Pie 

For The On- And Off-Premise Sale Of Retail Beer And Retail Table Wine; 
Lloyd Chandler Peeples, III, Executive    (public hearing)   

 
 Mr. Downes stated that this is a new restaurant and was reviewed by the Police 
Department. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4937 was by Mrs. Cook and 

second was by Mr. Head.  
 
 Mr. Peeples explained his business. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked about training. 
 
 Mr. Peeples explained that all employees attend a serve safe alcohol program. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mayor Curry – yes   
        Motion carried. 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
April 10, 2017 

Page 11 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4938 
 
Resolution Number 4938 – Liquor License – New Season LLC D/B/A Texas Taco 

Grill For The On-Premise Sale Of Restaurant Retail Liquor; Denis Jerome 
Gavlik And Larry Maddox Beasley, Jr, Executives   (public hearing)    

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4938 was by Mrs. Cook and 

second was by Mr. Head.  
 
 Max Beasley, manager partner, stated that the restaurant opened up recently and 
this application is for an alcohol license for beer, wine and a frozen margarita machine. 
 
 Chief Rary stated that he has reviewed the background checks of the applicants 
and has attempted to talk to them prior to the meeting, but has been unable to actually 
discuss the background checks with the applicants.  He stated that he recommends that 
the Council review this application. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked about the applicant’s records and noted that the application 
shows older and more recent arrests of the applicants. He asked the applicant to explain. 
 
 Mr. Beasley stated that the arrest of Mr. Gavlik was right after high school and he 
was homesless, living on the beach and selling fish for a living.  He got into a vehicle 
looking for something to eat and got arrested.  He stated that his arrests stemmed during a 
time when he was a wild young man and since 1994 he has remained out of trouble.   He 
stated he was saved in 1995 and changed.  He explained that in 2013 he went to Destin 
and stayed with a friend and, in 2014, he and his wife came back from Mexico and a 
friend later died in an accident and he went there to speak at the funeral.  In reuniting 
with his old friends, he made the acquaintance of a landscaper who requested a ride 
home.  He stated he took the man home and made a stop at one house so the man could 
pick up his tools.  He stated he waited in the man’s house and the police showed up at the 
door, came in and searched the premises and charged him with drug possession. He later 
pled for a lesser sentence. 
 
 Mrs. Cook stated that the charge says possession. 
 
 Chief Rary stated that there are different forms of information that can be 
supplied and the information that was supplied was of the strictest form--FBI form,--and 
the applicant’s story does match the information that he reviewed. 
 
 Mr. Head asked if he owns any other restaurants. 
 
 Mr. Beasley stated that this is their first restaurant.  He also gave a description of 
the location of the restaurant. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 



City Council Minutes 
April 10, 2017 

Page 12 
 

 Mr. Pierce asked if there is another partner who could apply for this license.  He 
stated that it concerns him when an applicant who has a criminal record requests a liquor 
license and families will patronize this restaurant. 
 
 Mr. Beasley stated that the executives had to apply for this license through 
fingerprinting and the FBI; they are the only two executives in the LLC. 
 
 There being no one to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – no  
   Mr. Pierce – no   Mayor Curry – yes   
        Motion failed. 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4939 
 
Resolution Number 4939 – A Resolution Authorizing A Special Economic 

Development Agreement By The City Of Vestavia Hills Alabama And Slice 
280 LLC 

 
 Mr. Downes explained that this request is for an incentive agreement for 
construction of a sewer line along Timberlake during the construction of this new 
restaurant along with some sidewalk construction, etc.  This Resolution approves that 
agreement in light of the extraordinary requests of the City which add to the construction 
costs for the developers.  He highlighted the cost of the incentive agreement, the time 
line, etc.  
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4939 was by Mrs. Cook and 

second was by Mr. Head.  
 
 Heyward Housch, Maynard, Cooper and Gale, stated that this is done under 
Amendment 772 of the Alabama Constitution and is like other agreements previously 
approved by the Council.  He explained the terms of the agreement. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked about the infrastructure improvements.  Mr. Downes explained 
the sewer and the sidewalk improvements and their potential impact on the area, spurring 
potential future commercial development within the area. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mayor Curry – yes   
        Motion carried. 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
April 10, 2017 

Page 13 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4940 
 
Resolution Number 4940 – A Resolution Authorizing A Special Economic 

Development Agreement By The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama And 
Crosshaven 6, LLC 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4940 was by Mrs. Cook and 

second was by Mr. Head.  
 
 Mr. Downes explained that this Resolution is an agreement for the Leaf and Petal 
development, which is related to the next resolution to be considered for Satterfield’s 
Restaurant.  He explained both owners are present to answer questions.  He explained 
that the incentive agreement helps mitigate extraordinary costs for development and the 
acquisition of right-of-way needed to install a needed sidewalk.  He explained the terms 
of both agreements. 
 
 Mr. Housch confirmed the terms and explained. 
 
 Jamie Pursell, owner, stated that they have moved the homes from the property 
and are waiting to subdivide the property and have Satterfield’s close on their portion of 
the development.  He explained that the contractor who removed the homes left the 
property in a bad condition and he is working to clean it up. 
 
 Mr. Pierce implored the owners to clean the property and put up silt screening as 
soon as possible. 
 
 Mr. Downes read a listing of the infrastructure that this development needs to 
install. 
 
 Discussion ensued as to the required geotechnical testing of the properties, the 
reduction of bad soils, installation of a guardrail to protect pedestrians and the changing 
cost within the budget. 
 
 Mrs. Cook asked where the poor soils will be stored on-site. 
 
 Mr. Pursell explained that the soil can be worked into the landscaped areas.  The 
site development work is estimated between $1 and $3 million. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked about a large tree at the north end of the property. 
 
 Mr. Pursell stated that the tree needs to be removed and would be removed soon 
when it is safe to do so. 
 
 Mrs. Cook asked about silt screening.  Mr. Brady explained that they will be 
permitted through ADEM.  The only work they have done so far is to remove the homes 
and that does not require installation of screening. 



City Council Minutes 
April 10, 2017 

Page 14 
 

 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 Lane Tolliver, 3213 Paige Lane, also representing another resident of Paige Lane, 
asked who will oversee the issues of the development of this property. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that the Department of Building Safety regularly visits the site 
along with the City Engineer.  All of these and ADEM will oversee the site as a 
combination of City staff.   
 
 Robert Debuys, 3467 Mossbrook Lane, stated that Cahaba Heights has suffered 
with the condition of Crosshaven and this development will make this area better.  He 
cannot think of any financial agreement more deserving than this one. 
 
There being no one to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and 
called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mayor Curry – yes   
        Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4941 
 
Resolution Number 4941 – A Resolution Authorizing A Special Economic 

Development Agreement By The City Of Vestavia Hills And Satterfield’s 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4941 was by Mr. Pierce and 

second was by Mrs. Cook.  
 
 Mr. Downes explained that this Resolution is within the same development as the 
previous request. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mayor Curry – yes   
        Motion carried. 
 
 Mr. Downes recognized Jamie Pursell who has been working with Brian Davis, 
Christopher Brady and Tony Renta in the placement and landscaping of the new Cahaba 
Heights sign located on Dolly Ridge Road, which has been much improved with the 
removal of the guardrail at the location. 
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
April 10, 2017 

Page 15 
 

FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following resolutions and/or ordinances will be 
presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regular meeting on April 24, 2017, at 
6:00 PM. 

• Resolution Number 4942 – Annexation – 90-Day – 3308 Misty Lane; Lot 1, The 
Woods At Rocky Ridge; Will And Jill Smith, Owners   (public hearing)   

• Ordinance Number 2706 - Annexation – Overnight – 3308 Misty Lane; Lot 1, 
The Woods At Rocky Ridge; Will And Jill Smith, Owners  (public hearing)   

• Ordinance Number 2703 – An Ordinance Approving Conditional Use Approval 
For A Home Occupation For Property Located At 4648 Jackson Loop, Lot 1041, 
Heritage Hills, Phase III, Sector 2; Tammy Williamson, Owner.  The Property Is 
Currently Zoned Vestavia Hills PUD PR-1   (public hearing)   

• Ordinance Number 2704 – Rezoning – 3111 And 3115 Timberlake Road; Rezone 
From Vestavia Hills R-1 (Residential District) To Vestavia Hills O-1 (Office 
District); Eiffel Partners, LLC, Owners   (public hearing)   

• Ordinance Number 2705 – Rezoning – 3700 Cahaba Heights Road; Rezone From 
Vestavia Hills B-3 (Business District With Conditions) To Vestavia Hills R-9 
(Planned Residential District); Black Box Management, LLC, Owners   (public 
hearing)   

• Resolution Number 4943 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City 
Manager To Execute And Deliver An Agreement With The Regional Planning 
Commission Of Greater Birmingham For An APPLE Project To Study And 
Further Develop Improvement Plans For A Section Of Crosshaven Drive From 
Cahaba Heights Road To Overton Road 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
 None. 
 
 At 9:25 PM, Mr. Head made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Mr. Pierce.  The 
meeting adjourned at 9:26 PM. 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 4942 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4942 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated September 1, 2016, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 24th day of April, 2017; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 26th day of April, 2017. 

 2.  That on the 28th day of August, 2017, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such 

hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance 

annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4942 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 



Resolution Number 4942 
Page 2 

 
annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

3308 Misty Lane 
Lot 1, The Woods at Rocky Ridge 

Will and Jill Smith, Owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 24th day of April, 2017. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Resolution Number 4942 
Page 3 

 

 



Untitled Page Page 1 of 1

PARCEL #: 28 00 20 4 002 012.000 [ 111-A+ ] Bath s: 3.5 H/C Sqft: 4,460
OWNER: SMITH JILL R 18-011.0 Bed Rooms: 4 Land Sen A414

ADDRESS: 3308 MISTY LN BIRMINGHAM AL 35243 Land: 214,500 Imp: 560,700 Total: 775,200
LOCATION: 3308 MISTY LN AL 35243

Arrpc • n nnn
Sales Info: 08/13/2014

>> [1/0 Records ] Processing... Tax Y

SUMMARY LAND BUILDINGS

$425,000

POGRAPHS

<< Prev Next sar : 2016 v

SALES PI iO MAPS

SUMMARY

ASSESSMENT VALUE

PROPERTY

CLASS:
3 OVER 65 CODE:

LAND VALUE 10%

LAND VALUE 20%

$214,500
$0

EXEMPT CODE : 2-2 DISABILITY CODE CURRENT USE VALUE [DEACTIVATED] SO

MUN CODE: 01 COUNTY HS YEAR: 2016

SCHOOL DIST
EXM OVERRIDE

AMT:
$0.00 CLASS 2

OVR ASD

VALUE:
$0.00 TOTAL MILLAGE: 50.1

CLASS 3

UTILITY WOOD OR

TENNIS COURT CO

26WCCEX

46TCCON

$9,100

$38,300
CLASS USE:

FOREST ACRES: 0 TAX SALE:

w»f^JEAR $214,500.00BOE VALUE:
VALUE:

0

POOL GUNITE 30

BLDG 001

29G0300

111

$12,600

$500,700

TOTAL MARKET VALUE [APPR. VALUE: $775,200]: $775,200

Assesment Override:

MARKET VALUE:

CU VALUE:

PENALTY:

ASSESSED VALUE:

TAX INFO

CLASS MUNCODE ASSD. VALUE TAX EXEMPTION

STATE 3 1 $77,520 $503.88 $4,000

COUNTY 3 1 $77,520 $1,046.52 $2,000

SCHOOL 3 1 $77,520 $635.66 $0

DIST SCHOOL 3 1 $77,520 $0.00 $0

CITY 3 1 $77,520 $0.00 $0

FOREST 3 1 $0 $0.00 $0

SPC SCHOOL1 3 1 $77,520 $395.35 $0

SPC SCHOOL2 3 1 $77,520 $ 1,302.34 $0

$26.00 $477.88

$27.00 $1,019.52

$0.00 $635.66

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $395.35

$0.00 $1,302.34

ASSD. VALUE: $77,520.00

TOTAL FEE & INTEREST: (Detail) $5.00

$3,883.75 GRAND TOTAL: $3,835.75

FULLY PAID

DEEDS

INSTRUMENT NUMBER

201416-3509

9809-4585

DATE

8/13/2014

06/30/1998

PAYMENT INFO

TAX
PAY DATE
KA YEAR

12/8/2016 2016

11/20/2015 2015

12/30/2014 2014

1/15/2014 2013

PAID BY

LERETA

LERETA

DAVID P CONDON, PC

BRUNO CAPITAL

MANAGEMENT CORP

• niiMA rAniTM

AMOUNT

$3,835.75

$2,149.29

$1,050.09

$1,050.09

http://eringcapture.jccal.org/caportal/CA_PropertyTaxParcelInfo.aspx?ParcelNo=28 00 2... 12/13/2016

Exhibit - Resolution No. 4942



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4942



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4942



 

 

Exhibit - Resolution No. 4942



STATE OF ALABAMA

COUNTY.Wr-ffgttaJ

PETITION FOR ANNEXATION TO THE

Resolution Number 3824

Page 6

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA

Date ofPetition: Og,(Hr. 1 i 2*Q 1k

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama.

We, the undersigned owners of the properties set out in red outline in Exhibit "A"
attached hereto, which properties are contiguous to the City limits of the City of Vestavia Hills,
Alabama, under the authority of Act No. 32 of the Special Session of the Alabama Legislature of
1964, do hereby petition the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, that the properties set out in red
outline in Exhibit "A" attached, situated in ^frJpV £ftSfl/J County, Alabama, be annexed
to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. The metes and bounds description of the boundary of the
property of the undersigned proposed to be annexed is also set out on said Exhibit "A" and a map
showing in red the property proposed for annexation by this petition is also attached and made a
part hereof.

The undersigned petitioners do further petition that the Honorable Mayor and City
Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, set a date for the hearing of this petition and any
objections in writing to the petition or protest, on a date certain and that no less than ninety (90)
days before said date certain for said hearing on this petition, that a notice of said hearing along
with this petition be published in a newspaper of general circulation in Jefferson County,
Alabama.

We, the undersigned petitioners do also ask that the Honorable Mayor and City Council
of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do all things necessary and requisite to comply with the
terms ofAct No. 32 ofthe Special Session of the Alabama Legislature of 1964.

1/v/lU-Sr^rM '5(3 3A*iU Corn

Exhibit - Resolution No. 4942



LOT: 1
BLOCK:

EXHIBIT "A"

Resolution Number 3824

Pagel

survey: "Tlte WflOOS AT RsCty fclO<}&

RECORDED IN MAP BOOK ^.7 [ ,PAGE O/ IN THE
PROBATE OFFICE OF J^kf^fpN COUNTY, ALABAMA.

COUNTY ZONING: u
COMPATIBLE CITYZONING: fc, * 2*

LEGAL DESCRIPTION (METES AND BOUNDS):

2 V$S{ Sc4f<ZtSOr* Q^O^ AL*A4a*4.

Exhibit - Resolution No. 4942



Resolution Number 3824

PageS

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have hereunto set their hands and seals, or
caused these presents to be executed by their duly authorized representatives, with full authority.

SIGNATURE(S) DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

Lot \ Block SurveyT^ £ WOOPS ^ favcftlrf
Lot Block

Lot Block

Survey

_Survey_

(Use reverse side hereoffor additional signatures andproperty descriptions, ifneeded).

STATE OF ALABAMA

^ffeftSO/J COUNTY
•4 \\Ay K« prS) f\\ being duly sworn says: Iam one ofthe persons who

signed theabove petition, and I certify that said petition contains the signatures of all the owners
of the described property.

£&^S
Signature ofCertifier

Subscribed and sworn before me this the (^day ofjwi^^ ,20l(p

RITAANNESAIA
Notary Public •State ofAlabama

My Commission Expires
December7,2017

My commission expires: /C*4 III f

Exhibit - Resolution No. 4942



Resolution Number 3824

Page 9

EXHIBIT "B"

VESTAVIA HILLS BOARD OF EDUCATION
1204 Montgomery Highway

Vestavia HUlsAL 35216

(To be completed by the City)

Date of Annexation Petition

Resolution: Date:

Overnight Ordinance: Date:
90 Day Final Ordinance: Date:

Action Taken: Grant

Deny_
Number:
Number:
Number:

(To be completed by Homeowner)

Name(s)ofHomeowner(s): »J|LA^ fv « z>ril T^

Address: l^ob KUsfy Ifr^
City: YJK^fr\tc^OMAA State: /[L-

Information on Children;

iJk

Zip: 352>/?

Plan to Enroll In

Vestavia Hills School?

Name(s) Age School Grade Yes No

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

Approximate date for enrolling students in Vestavia Hills City Schools if above response is
'yes".

Exhibit - Resolution No. 4942



Fnd. 1" Open Iron
% Map Book 224, Page 99

FOUNDATION SURVEY / PLOT PLAN

PROPOSED TENNIS COURT

Description: LOT 1, THE WOODS AT ROCKY RIDGE, as recorded in Map Book
239, Page 57, in the Office of the Judge of Probate, Jefferson County
Alabama.

The correct address is: 3308 Misty Lone Birmingham, AL 35243

NOTE: IPS = Iron Pin Set (#5 Rebar)
PP = Power Pole

Fnd. = Found

STATE OF ALABAMA:
JEFFERSON COUNTY:

I, James R. Boatright, Sr., a Licensed Land Surveyor, do hereby certify that all
parts of this survey and drawing have been completed in accordance with the
current requirements of the Standards of Practice for Land Surveyina in the
State of Alabama, to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief.

According to my survey this the 27th day of May, 2015

James R. Boatright, Sr.,-, AL REG. NO. 17826
704 Mary Vann Lane, Birmingham AL 35215
Phone (205) 854-3669 Fax (205) 854-0071 80/78

82/17
82/73

E
xh

ib
it 

- R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

N
o.

 4
94

2



Ordinance Number 2706 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2706 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Will and Jill Smith dated 

September 1, 2016, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the 

corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia 

Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest 

that said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, 

Code of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to 

embrace and include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present 

corporate limits.  The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the 

distance between the old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other 

municipality.  Said territory is described as follows: 

3308 Misty Lane 
Lot 1, The Woods at Rocky Ridge 

Will and Jill Smith 
 

  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this 

Ordinance containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be 

published/posted in accordance with Alabama law. 



Ordinance Number 2706 
Page 2 

 
  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 24th day of April, 2017. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2706 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 24th day of April, 2017, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2017. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2706 
Page 3 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2703 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2703 
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL 
FOR A HOME OCCUPATION  

 
 WHEREAS, on December 13, 2010, the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2331, also known as the City 

of Vestavia Hills Zoning Code; and 

 WHEREAS, on February 19, 2001 the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills 

adopted and approved Ordinance Number 1864 to rezone 3,350 +/- acres from multiple 

Jefferson County and Vestavia Hills zoning classifications to Vestavia Hills P.U.D.; and 

 WHEREAS, Section 709.5.A.1.b of Ordinance Number 1838 classifies a “home 

occupation” permitted only as a “Conditional Use” and 

 WHEREAS, Tammy Williamson is the owner of the property located at 4648 

Jackson Loop, currently zoned Vestavia Hills PUD PR-1 (planned unit development 

planned residential district) more particularly described as Lot 1041, Heritage Hills, 

Phase III, Sector 2; and 

 WHEREAS, Tammy Williamson has submitted application for Conditional Use 

Approval for a home occupation to be operated in her residence located at 4648 Jackson 

Loop, Vestavia Hills, Alabama located in the Liberty Park P.U.D.; and 

 WHEREAS, Tammy Williamson has indicated in her application for Conditional 

Use Approval that she will operate an office for her real estate business out of her home 

pursuant to the specifications of a home occupation; and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of said application dated February 3, 2017 is marked as 

Exhibit A, attached and hereby incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2703. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 



Ordinance Number 2703 
Page 2 

 
1. Conditional Use Approval is hereby approved for Tammy Williamson for a 

home occupation as described in the above-referenced application for her 

residence located at 4648 Jackson Loop, Vestavia Hills, Alabama located in 

Liberty Park P.U.D. subject to the provisions outlined in Article 9 of the 

Vestavia Hills Zoning Code outlined as follows: 

a. “Home occupation is defined as any use customarily conducted entirely 

within a dwelling and carried on solely by the inhabitant thereof, and 

which use is clearly incidental, accessory, subordinate and secondary to 

the use of the dwelling for dwelling purposes, and does not change the 

character of the dwelling itself or any part of parcel of property in the 

neighborhood surrounding said dwelling; and 

b. Home occupations shall be conducted only in the main dwelling building 

on the lot.  No more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the said dwelling 

may be used for a home occupation; and 

c. There shall be no public display of goods and absolutely no commodities 

sold on the premises; and 

d. No sign may be attached to the dwelling or any part of the real estate 

advertising any home occupation; and 

e. No home occupation or profession shall be permitted if such occupation 

creates noise, odors, vibrations or traffic which interferes with the 

residential qualities of the neighborhood insofar as health, safety, morals, 

convenience and general welfare are concerned; and 



Ordinance Number 2703 
Page 3 

 
f. In order to be a permitted home occupation or profession, the use must be 

one which is habitually, customarily and commonly established as a 

reasonable incidental, accessory, subordinate and secondary use; and 

g. Operation of any and all other business of any nature in residential zones 

is expressly prohibited; and 

h. The activity carried on as home occupation shall be limited to the hours 

between 7:00 AM and 10:00 PM; and 

i. No home occupation shall be permitted that requires the operation or 

keeping on premises a commercial vehicle and no additional traffic shall 

be generated by said conditional use; and 

j. No persons other than members of the family residing on the premises 

shall be employed by the home occupation; and 

2. Conditional Use Approval is further conditioned upon and subject to all 

applicable private and restrictive covenants attached to the said property 

located in the Liberty Park P.U.D. 

3. A City of Vestavia Hills Business License shall be issued upon application 

and payment by Tammy Williamson working subject to the rules and 

regulations outlined in the Vestavia Hills Business License Code and shall be 

renewed each year that the home occupation is operated from the said 

property located in the Liberty Park P.U.D. 

4. At any time should Tammy Williamson vacate the premises located at 4648 

Jackson Loop, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, discontinue or relocate this business, 



Ordinance Number 2703 
Page 4 

 
this Conditional Use Approval shall be nullified and said Ordinance Number 

2703 shall be automatically repealed. 

5. This Ordinance Number 2703 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption, approval and publishing/posting pursuant to Alabama law. 

 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 24th day of April, 

2017. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2703 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 24th day of April, 2017 as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2017. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



Exhibit A Ordinance No. 2702



Exhibit A Ordinance No. 2702



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     MARCH 9, 2017 
 

• CASE:  P-0317-10 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION:   Conditional Use Approval for a home based business  
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  4648 Jackson Loop 
 
• APPLICANT/OWNER:  Tammy Williamson 

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  The applicant wishes to conduct a home based business in 

Liberty Park. As required by the Liberty Park PUD a conditional use permit is required 
for a home based business. A description of the applicants business, as well as an 
approval letter from Liberty Park is attached. The property is zoned PR-1. 

 
• LIBERTY PARK MASTER PLAN:  This request is consistent with the procedures of 

the Liberty Park PUD. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / subdivision 
requirements related to this proposal, including application, notification, 
setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent to property 
owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and find it does 
meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  I recommend the Commission recommend 
approval with the following conditions:  
1. Home occupations shall be conducted only in the principal dwelling. No more 
than twenty-five (25) percent, up to 500 sq. ft., of the dwelling may be used for a 
home occupation. 
2. There shall be no outdoor display or storage associated with the home 
occupation and no commodities shall be sold on the premises other than by 
phone, mail or internet. No goods shall be delivered to a purchaser on the 
premises. 
3. No sign may be attached to the dwelling or any part of the real estate 
advertising any home occupation. 
4. No home occupation shall be permitted if it creates noise, odors, vibrations or 
traffic congestion, which interferes with the residential qualities of the 
neighborhood insofar as health, safety, morals, convenience and general welfare 
are concerned. 
5. In order to be a permitted home occupation, the use must be one which is 
habitually, customarily, and commonly established as a reasonable incidental, 



accessory, subordinate and secondary use. The existing dwelling shall not be 
enlarged to accommodate the home occupation; nor shall any accessory 
structure be built for the purpose of operating the home occupation. 
6. No home occupation shall be permitted that requires the operation or keeping 
on premises of a commercial vehicle. 
7. No persons other than members of the family residing on the premises shall 
be employed by the home occupation. 
8. Home occupations shall be limited to the hours between 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 
p.m. 
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request 
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

 
MOTION Mr. Burrell made a motion to recommend approval of Conditional Use Approval 
for a home based business at 4648 Jackson Loop with the following conditions: 

1. Home occupations shall be conducted only in the principal dwelling. No 
more than twenty-five (25) percent, up to 500 sq. ft., of the dwelling may be 
used for a home occupation. 
2. There shall be no outdoor display or storage associated with the home 
occupation and no commodities shall be sold on the premises other than by 
phone, mail or internet. No goods shall be delivered to a purchaser on the 
premises. 
3. No sign may be attached to the dwelling or any part of the real estate 
advertising any home occupation. 
4. No home occupation shall be permitted if it creates noise, odors, vibrations 
or traffic congestion, which interferes with the residential qualities of the 
neighborhood insofar as health, safety, morals, convenience and general 
welfare are concerned. 
5. In order to be a permitted home occupation, the use must be one which is 
habitually, customarily, and commonly established as a reasonable incidental, 
accessory, subordinate and secondary use. The existing dwelling shall not be 
enlarged to accommodate the home occupation; nor shall any accessory 
structure be built for the purpose of operating the home occupation. 
6. No home occupation shall be permitted that requires the operation or 
keeping on premises of a commercial vehicle. 
7. No persons other than members of the family residing on the premises shall 
be employed by the home occupation. 



 3 

8. Home occupations shall be limited to the hours between 7:00 a.m. 
and 10:00 p.m. 

 

Second was by Mrs. Cobb. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes            
Mr. Wolfe – yes    Mr. Brooks – yes 
Mrs. Cobb – yes    Mr. Larson – yes    
Motion carried 

 
 





Exhibit A Ordinance No. 2702



Exhibit A Ordinance No. 2702



Ordinance Number 2704 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2704 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS R-
1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS O-1 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills R-1 (residential 

district) to Vestavia Hills O-1 (office district):  

3111 and 3115 Timberlake Road 
Eiffel Partners, LLC, Owner(s) 

 
More particularly described as follows: 

PARCEL I: 
Part of the Southwest Quarter (SW ¼) of the Southeast Quarter (SE ¼), 
Section 27, Township 18, Range 2 West, more particularly described as 
follows:  
Commencing at the Southwest corner of the Southwest Quarter (SW ¼) 
of the Southeast Quarter (SE ¼) of Section 27-18-2 West, run thence 
North along the quarter section line 794.5 feet; thence to the right 90 
degrees a distance of 15 feet to the Northwest corner of that certain tract 
of land heretofore conveyed on June 23, 1948, by Eston H. Stead and 
wife Edna Farley Stead to the said William D. Cosper and Mary Louise 
C Cosper by deed recorded in Volume 4150, Record of Deeds, Page 
194, in the Probate Office of Jefferson County, Alabama, and from this 
point run East along the North line of said tract of land just referred to a 
distance of 200 feet to the Northeast corner of said tract of land just 
referred to, thence 90 degrees to the left a distance of 15 feet, thence 90 
degrees to the left a distance of 200 feet, thence 90 degrees to the left a 
distance of 15 feet to the point of beginning of the tract herein conveyed, 
it being the intention to convey by this deed a strip of land 15 feet wide 
and running East a distance of 200 feet lying just North of and adjacent 
to the tract of land conveyed by Stead and wife to the grantees herein as 
mentioned above. 
 
PARCEL II: 
Part of the SW ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 27, Township 18 Range 2 West 
more particularly described as follows: Commencing at the SW corner 
of the SW ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 27-18-2 West, run thence North 



Ordinance Number 2704 
Page 2 

 
along ¼ section line 694.5', thence to the right 90 degrees a distance of 
15.0 feet to the point of beginning, thence along same line 200.0 feet, 
thence 90 degrees to the left a distance of 100.0 feet, thence 90 degrees 
to the left 200.0 feet, thence 90 degrees to the left 100.0 feet to the point 
of beginning. 
 
PARCEL III: 
Part of the Southwest ¼ of the Southeast ¼ of Section 27, Township 18 
South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama, more particularly 
described as follows: Begin at the Southwest corner of said ¼ ¼ Section; 
run thence Northwardly along the West line thereof for a distance of 
594.5 feet; thence turning at an angle of 90° to the right and run 
Eastwardly for a distance of 15 feet to the point of beginning of the tract 
here described; from the point of beginning thus obtained, continue 
along the same course last described for a distance of 200 feet; thence 
turning an angle of 90° to the left, run Northwardly for a distance of 100 
feet; thence turning an angle of 90° to the left run Westwardly for a 
distance of 200 feet; thence turning an angle to the left of 90° run 
Southwestwardly for a distance of 100 feet to the point of beginning; 
being situated in Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that said zoning be contingent upon the 

following conditions: 

1. Buildings must have frontage on Timberlake Road;  
2. Building height limited to two (2) stories;  
3. Buildings to be designed in a residential style; 
4. Developers to follow the Blue Lake Area Study; and 
5. Zoning shall not be effective until lots are resurveyed, plat recorded and a 

copy of recorded plat submitted to the Office of the City Clerk. 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 24th day of April, 2017. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 2704 
Page 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2704 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 24th day of April, 2017 as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 
Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2017. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 
 



Ordiinance Number
P
r 2704 
Page 4 

 

 



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     MARCH 9, 2017

� CASE: P-0317-07

� REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Vestavia Hills R-1 Vestavia Hills O-1

� ADDRESS/LOCATION: 3111 & 3115 Timberlake Rd.

� APPLICANT/OWNER: Eiffel Partners, LLC/Len Shannon

� REPRESNTING AGENT: Chad Bryant

� GENERAL DISCUSSION: Property is on Timberlake Dr., and immediately 
adjacent to the rear of the Harris Doyle office building. Applicant is seeking rezoning 
to build two office buildings. Both buildings would be two stories and 7,875 square 
feet. A preliminary site is attached.

The lot and building will be under the same ownership as the Harris Doyle building
and will share parking and access from Blue Lake Dr. Access to Timberlake Dr. is 
proposed, however, drive may only be stubbed until Timberlake Rd. improvements 
are completed. All lots will be resurveyed into 1 lot at the completion of zoning.

� CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN: The request is consistent with the 
Cahaba Heights Community Plan for limited mixed use.

� STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  Zoning contingent on resurvey being 
approved and recorded and buildings be residentially styled, consistent with 
the neighborhood. 

2. City Engineer Review:  Will continue to evaluate based on Timberlake Dr. 
improvements.

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2704



2

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

MOTION Mr. Wolfe made a motion to recommend rezoning approval 3111 & 3115 
Timberlake Rd. from Vestavia Hills R-1 to Vestavia Hills B-1 with the following conditions:

A. Buildings must have frontage on Timberlake Rd.;
B. Building height limited to two (2) stories;
C. Buildings be designed in a residential style;
D. Developers follow Blue Lake Area Study;
E. Lots must be resurveyed and plat recorded for zoning to take effect.

Second was by Mr. Goodwin. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Burrell – yes
Mr. Wolfe – yes Mr. Brooks – yes
Mrs. Cobb – yes Mr. Larson – yes 
Motion carried

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2704



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2704



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2704



 S
ou

rc
e:

 E
sr

i, 
D

ig
ita

lG
lo

be
, G

eo
E

ye
, E

ar
th

st
ar

 G
eo

gr
ap

hi
cs

,
C

N
E

S
/A

irb
us

 D
S

, U
S

D
A

, U
S

G
S

, A
er

oG
R

ID
, I

G
N

, a
nd

 th
e 

G
IS

 U
se

r
C

om
m

un
ity

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2704



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2704



SHEET

DRAWING

NEW OFFICE BUILDINGS FOR:

HARRIS DOYLE HOMES
3111 AND 3115 TIMBERLAKE DRIVE,   VESTAVIA HILLS,   ALABAMA, 35243

DATES


























R

S EG I STER
E

D
A

R
CH

ITECT

TATE
O

F
A

L
A

BAMA

A001
SITE PLAN
VICINITY SKETCH

0'
80

'
40

'
12

0'

N

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2704



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2704



Ordinance Number 2705 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2705 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS B-
3 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-9. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills B-3 (business 

district with conditions) to Vestavia Hills R-9 (planned residential district):  

3700 Cahaba Heights Road 
Black Box Management, LLC, Owner(s) 

 
More particularly described as follows: 
 

A parcel of land situated in the Northeast ¼ of Section 23, Township 18 
South, Range 2 West, Huntsville Meridian, Jefferson County, Alabama, 
being more particularly described as follows: 

 
Begin at the locally accepted NE corner of the SW ¼ of the NE ¼ of 
Section 23, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, Huntsville Meridian, 
Jefferson County, Alabama; thence run South 00 degrees 23’04” East 
along the East line of said 1/4-1/4 Section for a distance of 1334.83 feet to 
the locally accepted SE corner of said 1/4-1/4 Section; thence leaving the 
said East line run North 88 degrees 38’55” West along the South line of 
said ¼ Section for a distance of 555.97 feet to the East right-of-way line of 
Interstate Highway No. 459, (right-of-way width varies); thence leaving 
said South line run North 33 degrees 45’24” East along said East right-of-
way for a distance of 134.15 feet; thence run North 56 Degrees 16’16” 
West along said East right-of-way line for a distance of 139.86 feet; 
thence run North 07 degrees 07’33” East along said East right-of-way line 
for a distance of 543.72 feet; thence run North 22 degrees 39’57” East 
along said East right-of-way line for a distance of 1748.40 feet; thence run 
North 33 degrees 00’13” East along said East right-of-way line for a 
distance of 365.98 feet to the North line of said Section 23; thence leaving 
said East right-of-way line run South 88 degrees 43’12” East along said 
north line for a distance of 523.40 feet; thence leaving said North line run 
South 33 degrees 12’02” West for a distance of 1006.12 feet; thence run 
South 59 degrees 34’00” West for a distance of 250.06 feet to the locally 
accepted East line of the NW ¼ of the NE ¼ of Section 23; thence run 



Ordinance Number 2705 
Page 2 

 
South 00 degrees 25’45” East along said East line for a distance of 349.84 
feet to the Point of Beginning.  Less and except any part lying SE of the 
Cahaba River. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that said zoning be contingent upon the 

following conditions: 

1. City Engineer to review and approve traffic plans;  
2. Public Ingress/Egress easement to be dedicated on plat to ensure access to 

properties beyond subject property; and 
3. Access to be reserved for City to access adjacent city-owned property. 

 
APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 24th day of April, 2017. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2705 
Page 3 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2705 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 24th day of April, 2017 as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 
Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2017. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 
 



Ordiinance Number
P
r 2705 
Page 4 

 

 



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     MARCH 9, 2017

� CASE: P-0317-11

� REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning for 3700 Cahaba Heights Rd. from Vestavia 
Hills B-3 to Vestavia Hills R-9 For The Purpose Of Residential Development

� ADDRESS/LOCATION: 3700 Cahaba Heights Rd.

� APPLICANT/OWNER: Black Box Management, LLC/Stuart Raburn

� REPRESNTING AGENT: Engineering Design Group

� GENERAL DISCUSSION: Property is undeveloped land between I-459 and 
Cahaba River. 48 lots are proposed, averaging around a quarter of an acre in size.
The proposed setbacks are 10’ front, 0’ on the side with a minimum of 10’ separation 
between buildings, and 10’ in the rear. There are also 3 common areas in the 
subdivision. The proposed streets will have a 50’ ROW and sidewalks on both sides.

At the rear of the development will be a private wastewater system to serve the 
development. Access to the wastewater plant and private property will be served by 
an easement at the end of Helen Ridge Dr.

� CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN: The request is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan for Planned Mixed Use.

� STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2705



2

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

MOTION Mr. Wolfe made a motion to recommend rezoning approval of 3700 Cahaba 
Heights Rd. from Vestavia Hills B-3 to Vestavia Hills R-9 with the following conditions:

A. City Engineering to review traffic plans.

Second was by Mr. Cobb. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Burrell – no
Mr. Wolfe – yes Mr. Brooks – yes
Mrs. Cobb – yes Mr. Larson – yes 
Motion failed

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2705



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2705



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2705



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2705



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2705



 S
ou

rc
e:

 E
sr

i, 
D

ig
ita

lG
lo

be
, G

eo
E

ye
, E

ar
th

st
ar

 G
eo

gr
ap

hi
cs

,
C

N
E

S
/A

irb
us

 D
S

, U
S

D
A

, U
S

G
S

, A
er

oG
R

ID
, I

G
N

, a
nd

 th
e 

G
IS

 U
se

r
C

om
m

un
ity

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2705



�
��
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
	
	
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2705



�
��
��
�
�
	

�
	�


��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2705



�
��
��
�
�
��
	

�
�


��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2705



�
��
��
�
��
�
�	
�

�
�


��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2705



�
��
��
�
�
	
�


��
�


�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2705



�
��
��
�
�
	
�


��
�
�
�


�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2705



�
��
��
�
�	


��


�



�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2705



�
��
��
�
�
�
	
��

�
��
�

�
�	
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2705



�
��
��
�
�
�
	
��

�
��
�

�
�	
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2705



�
��
��
�
��
�	


�
�


��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2705



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4943 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT WITH 
THE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION OF GREATER 
BIRMINGHAM FOR AN “APPLE” PROJECT TO STUDY AND 
FURTHER DEVELOP IMPROVEMENT PLANS FOR A SECTION OF 
CROSSHAVEN DRIVE FROM CAHABA HEIGHTS ROAD TO 
OVERTON ROAD 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver an 

agreement with the Regional Planning Commission of Greater Birmingham 

(“RPCGB”) for an Advanced Planning Program and Logical Engineering (“APPLE”) 

project; and 

2. A copy of said agreement is marked as “Exhibit A” attached to and incorporated into 

this Resolution Number 4943 as though fully written therein.  Said project has 

anticipated costs of $60,000.  RPCGB grant at $48,000 or 80%; Vestavia Hills, as 

primary sponsor, pledges local match up to $12,000 (20%); and 

3. Said project would be funded from the Capital Improvement Fund; and 

4. This Resolution Number 4943 is effective immediately upon adoption and approval.  

ADOPTED and APPPROVED this the 24th day of April, 2017. 

 
 
 
 

     Ashley C. Curry 
     Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A – Resolution No. 4943 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(JEFFERSON COUNTY) 
 
(STATE OF ALABAMA) 

 

AGREEMENT 

TO 

SHARE RESPONSIBILITIES 

Crosshaven Drive 

From Cahaba Heights Road to Overton Road 

 
 
RECITAL: 
 
The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (Vestavia) desires to make certain improvements to Crosshaven 
Drive from Cahaba Heights Road to Overton Road (Project).  The Project traverses through one 
jurisdiction, Vestavia.  Party desires to cost share the Corridor Study with the Regional Planning 
Commission of Greater Birmingham (“RPCGB”).  Vestavia and the RPCGB will divide 
responsibility as follows:  Vestavia responsibility being 20% of the costs and RPCGB responsibility 
being 80% of the costs.  Vestavia and the RPCGB desire to establish their agreement herewith.  
 
WHEREAS, Vestavia has entered into a separate Agreement with the RPCGB to receive funding 
under the Advanced Planning Program and Logical Engineering (APPLE) program for the Project.  
The total amount of the funding awarded to Vestavia for the APPLE program is $60,000 with 
Vestavia’s share being $12,000. 
 
WHEREAS, Vestavia agrees to work in good faith with RPCGB to complete the Project in a timely 
and professional manner, and 
 
WHEREAS, the RPCGB agrees to secure third party contractor(s) for the corridor study, and 
 
 
 



Exhibit A – Resolution No. 4943 

IN CONSIDERATION OF THE PREMISES stated herein, Vestavia and the RPCGB mutually 
agree as follows: 
 
 

1. Vestavia and the RPCGB will jointly select a consultant and prepare the scope of work.  
 

2. Vestavia will pay directly to RPCGB the amount of $12,000 for the Project. 
 

3. RPCGB shall notify Vestavia and receive written concurrence for any cost overruns that are 
deemed necessary. 
 

4. The parties expressly agree that the RPCGB dos not assume any risk or future liability, or 
any future responsibility for any portion of Crosshaven Drive located within the municipality 
of Vestavia Hills. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly 
authorized representatives as reflected below. 
 
 
 
 
 CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 
 
 
________________________ By:  ___________________________ 
Date        Ashley C. Curry, Mayor 
 
 
________________________ By:  ____________________________ 
Date        Jeffrey Downes, City Manager 
 
 
 REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
 OF GREATER BIRMINGHAM 
 
 
 
 
________________________ By:  ___________________________ 
Date        Charles Ball, Executive Director 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4938 
 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR TEXAS TACO GRILL D/B/A NEW SEASON 
LLC; DENIS JEROME GAVLIK AND LARRY 
MADDOX BEASLEY JR., EXECUTIVES 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves 

the alcohol license for New Season LLC d/b/a, Texas Taco Grill located at 633 

Montgomery Hwy, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the On-Premise sale of 020 - Restaurant 

Retail Liquor; Denis Jerome Gavlik and Larry Maddox Beasley Jr., executives. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 24th day of April, 2017. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 















 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4944 
 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR EDWARD SCOTT LLC D/B/A SNAPPER 
GRABBERS; PAMELA JO SCOTT AND EDWARD 
KENT SCOTT, EXECUTIVES 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves 

the alcohol license for Edward Scott LLC d/b/a Snapper Grabbers, located at 521 

Montgomery Highway Suite 101 and 109, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the sale of 040 - 

Retail Beer (on- or off-premises) and 060 - Retail Table Wine (on- and off-premises); 

Pamela Jo Scott and Edward Kent Scott, executives. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 24th day of April, 2017. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 





Exhibit - Resolution No. 4944



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4944



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4944



 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4945 
 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR JACQUELINS INC. D/B/A 3RD ANNUAL 
CRAWFISH BOIL EVENT; MARIA ESPERANZA 
ADAN, EXECUTIVES 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves 

the alcohol license for Jacquelins Inc. d/b/a 3rd Annual Crawfish Boil Event, located at 

2531 Rocky Ridge Road, Suite 107, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the  sale of 140 - 

Special Events Retail; Maria Esperanza Adan, executives. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 24th day of April, 2017. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 





Exhibit - Resolution No. 4945



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4945



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4945



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4945



Resolution Number 4946 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4946 

 
A RESOLUTION RESCINDING RESOLUTION NUMBER 3721 AND 
PROVIDING FOR THE ANNUAL PARTICIPATION OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS IN THE “BACK-TO-SCHOOL SALES TAX HOLIDAY” AS 
AUTHORIZED BY 40-23-210 THROUGH 40-23-213, CODE OF ALABAMA 1975 

 
WHEREAS, on April 23, 2007, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

adopted and approved Resolution Number 3721 to participate in a tax free holiday for certain exempt 

items pursuant to Act 2006.574 generally referred to as the “State Sales Tax Holiday Legislation;” and 

WHEREAS, 40-23-210 through 40-23-213, Code of Alabama 1975, and Act No. 2017-120, 

provide for a Sales Tax Holiday for the exemption of the state sales and use tax for certain non-

commercial purchases related to school clothing and supplies; and  

WHEREAS, 40-23-213, Code of Alabama 1975, authorizes the City Council to provide for an 

exemption of City sales and use taxes for purchases of certain items covered during the same time 

period in which the state sales and use tax exemption is in place, provided a resolution to that effect is 

adopted at least thirty days prior to the sales tax holiday; and 

WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills City Council has affirmatively voted to grant the exemption of 

City sales and use taxes on purchases covered by 40-23-210 through 40-23-213, Code of Alabama 1975  

during the third full weekend of July, beginning at 12:01 a.m. on Friday, July 21, 2017 and ending at 

twelve midnight on Sunday, July 23, 2017 and continuing each subsequent year thereafter during 

the same time period as the State’s “Back-to-School Sales Tax Holiday” until and unless annual 

participation in the exemption is rescinded by further action of the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, Code of Alabama 1975, § 11-51-210(e) requires that the City Council notify the 

Alabama Department of Revenue of any new local tax or amendment to an existing local tax levy at 

least 30 days prior to the effective date of the change; and  

WHEREAS, the exemption of certain City sales and use taxes for the time period herein adopted 

by the City Council is an amendment to the City’s sales and use tax levy warranting notice to the 

Alabama Department of Revenue as provided in Code of Alabama 1975, § 11-51-210(e); 

REPEAL OF RESOLUTION NUMBER 3721 

WHEREAS,  Resolution Number 3721 adopted by the Vestavia Hills City Council, on April 23, 

2007 is hereby repealed, such repeal to become effective on the date of this Resolution Number 4946. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND VESTAVIA HILLS CITY 



Resolution Number 4946 
Page 2 

 
COUNCIL that it does hereby provide for an exemption of the City sales and use tax on purchases of 

items covered by 40-23-210 through 40-23-213, Code of Alabama 1975 beginning at 12:01 a.m. on 

Friday, July 21, 2017 and ending at twelve midnight on Sunday, July 23, 2017, and continuing each 

subsequent year thereafter during the same time period as the State’s “Back-to-School Sales Tax 

Holiday” until and unless annual participation in the exemption is rescinded by further action of the City 

Council. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this Resolution be immediately forwarded to the 

Alabama Department of Revenue in compliance with Code of Alabama 1975, § 11-51-210(e). 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED THIS 24TH DAY OF APRIL, 2017.  

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4947 
 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR TURNER FOOD SYSTEMS, LLC D/B/A WING 
DING 2017; DONNA LEIGH TURNER AND 
TRENTON TURNER JR., EXECUTIVES 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves 

the alcohol license for Turner Food Systems, LLC d/b/a Wing Ding 2017, located at 1032 

Montgomery Highway (parking lot), Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the sale of 140 - 

Special Events Retail; Donna Leigh Turner and Trenton Turner Jr., executives. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 24th day of April, 2017. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 





Exhibit - Resolution No. 4947



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4947



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4947



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4947



Resolution Number 4948 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4948 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER OF 

THE VESTAVIA HILLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
FOR A TERM OF FIVE YEARS  

 
WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

 
 WHEREAS, Section 11-16-3, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that the City 

Council shall appoint members of the City Board of Education to serve for a term of five 

(5) years; and  

 WHEREAS, the five-year term of Mark Hogewood as a member of the Vestavia 

Hills Board of Education expires at 6:00 PM on June 21, 2017 and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 1.  The City Council does hereby elect and appoint ________________________ 

as a member of the Vestavia Hills Board of Education for a term of five (5) years, 

beginning with the first regularly scheduled meeting of the Vestavia Hills Board of 

Education in June at 6:00 p.m. and ending at 6:00 p.m. on the date of the first regularly 

scheduled meeting of the Board in June of the year 2022; and 

 2.  This Resolution shall become effective upon the approval and adoption by the 

City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 RESOLVED, DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED, on this the 

24th day of April, 2017. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry  
      Mayor 
 



Resolution Number 4948 
Page 2 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 


	2017_0424CC_A
	2017_0410CC_M
	Resolution 4942
	Ordinance 2706
	Ordinance 2703
	Ordinance 2704
	Ordinance 2705
	Resolution 4943
	Resolution 4938
	Resolution 4944
	Resolution 4945
	Resolution 4946
	Resolution 4947
	Resolution 4948



